
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Monday, 1 February 2016 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Friday, 22 January 2016 at 2.30 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Kerry Molineux (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Jenny Nedwell, Kath Pratt, Judith Addison, Eamonn Higgins and Bernadette Parkinson 
 
Co-optees:  Dave Parkins and Jean Battle 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on Friday, 11th December 2015 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015-2016 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Community Safety Plan  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To receive a report from the Principal Partnerships Officer to provide the Committee with 
information on the current priorities of the Hyndburn Community Safety Partnership and 
the key actions that would help to tackle the identified community safety priorities.   
 
Recommended - That Members be invited to comment on actions 

contained in the Partnership Plan prior to them being 
verified by the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 
Steering Group. 

 

5.   Crime and Disorder Update   
 
Police Geographical Inspector to provide a verbal report at the meeting on crime and 
disorder. 
 

6.   Intelligence Based Targeting and Protecting Vulnerable People   
 
The Police Geographical Inspector and Hyndburn Homewise will provide a verbal report 
on intelligence based targeting and the protection of vulnerable people.   
 

 
 



 

 
152 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Friday, 11th December, 2015 

 
Present:  
 
 
 

Councillor Kerry Molineux (in the Chair), Councillors Jenny Nedwell (Vice 
Chair), Judith Addison and Eamonn Higgins 
 
Co-optees:  Jean Battle and Dave Parkins 
 

Apologies Councillors Kath Pratt and Bernadette Parkinson 

  

 
312 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors B. Parkinson and Pratt.  
Councillor L. Cox acted as substitute representative for Councillor B. Parkinson.      
 

313 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

314 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on Friday 24th July 2015 were submitted for approval as a correct record.  
The Co-optees of the meeting requested that their names be added to the meeting agenda 
and minutes.   
 
Resolved (1) That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record; and  
 
 (2) That the names of the co-optees be added to the agenda 

and minutes of each meeting.  
 
  
 

315 Consideration of Health Issues in Planning 
 
The Head of Planning and Transportation submitted a report to provide an overview of the 
approach taken to address health issues by National Planning Policy Framework and the 
Local Development Framework for Hyndburn, in particular the Hyndburn Core Strategy that 
includes a chapter on health.  This would be implemented through the determination of 
planning applications and incorporation of the relevant policy objectives into development 
wherever possible.  He also reported that the health of people in Hyndburn was generally 
worse than the English average and deprivation was higher than average with about 20.5% 
of children living in poverty. 
 
He reported that the Council received up-to-date statistics on residents’ health and referred 
Members to appendix 4, key indicators.  He outlined the determinants of wellbeing 
considered during the planning application process e.g. housing, employment status, water 
and sanitation, health care services in the area, age of the community and transport.  He 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
153 

reported that these issues had been addressed through the national policy framework by 
ensuring that the Council’s public resources which presented the community with an 
opportunity to improve their welfare were protected such as parks and open spaces.  He 
pointed out that the Council could only provide opportunities for people to be healthy and 
informed the Committee that all new developments should include the availability of a wide 
range of resources to improve people’s health such as allotments and nature reserves.   
 
Responses were provided to the following questions submitted by Members of the 
Committee in respect of issues relating to: 

 
- planning applications/developments in Hyndburn which have been influenced by 

health. 
- how health is built into plans for new developments. 
- the possible impact on District Councils in respect of Lancashire County Council’s 

plans for integrating a Public Health Officer into the Planning Department. 
- if Public Health had engaged with the Council on policy development. 
- the amount of weight attached to health issues in the development of a planning 

application. 
- if the Council had any influence on Lancashire County Council’s management of 

Public Rights of Way? 
- how planning could influence the opportunity to improved health and wellbeing in 

areas of low income. 
- taking health into account when considering planning applications for takeaways 

and fast food establishments.  
 
A summary of responses to the issues raised included the Chief Planning and 
Transportation Officer reporting that planning issues had been focussing on housing need 
but would be giving consideration to health issues during the next year.  He pointed out that 
it was important to develop strong policies to ensure that adequate consideration was given 
to issues such as health when considering planning applications, but advised that it was a 
multi-faceted issue that could only be tackled by seeking to address all the factors that 
influence people’s health.   
 
A Member referred to the listed buildings located in the Church Gateway area and 
suggested that consideration was given to this area and the Blythes Chemical site.  The 
Chief Planning and Transportation Officer indicated that the consultation zone imposed by 
the Health and Safety Executive around the Blythes Chemical site has a significant 
negative impact on the ability of the area to develop in a manner that would stimulate 
regeneration.  Consideration should be given to how the chlorine  could be better managed 
on the site as a means of reducing the extent of the consultation zone using available 
funding streams such as European Regional Development Funding (ERDF) .  Councillor 
Cox requested that she be kept informed of events as she was a substitute on the 
Committee and this issue affected her ward.   
 
Resolved (1) That the Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 

gives consideration to the means by which the 
processing of chlorine at the Blythes Chemicals Site 
could be improved to reduce the size of the consultation 
zone around the site; and  

 (2)  That the Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 
provides an update report on the planning possibilities 
for the Church Gateway area at a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

      
       

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
154 

 
316 To Inspire Update 

 
No report was submitted to the meeting and Members requested that this item be placed on 
the agenda of the Committee meeting scheduled for March 2016.   
 

317 Health Access Centre, Clinical Commission Group UPdate 
 
A report was submitted by David Rogers, NHS Midlands and Lancashire CSU relating to 
the Health Access Centre, however, the Locality Manager, Rachel Watkins who had been 
scheduled to present the report had provided her apologies.   The report referred to the 
work carried out by the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) with patients and clinicians to 
develop principles and a vision for primary care and referred to the closure of the Health 
Access Centre and provision for health care thereafter.   
 
Members pointed out that: 

- The consultation was a way of disguising the eventual closure of the Health Centre. 
- That a move of health to the PALS Centre would provide more difficult access by 

many patients.     
- Concern that funding would be restricted and eventually phased out. 
- That changes in health care provision were being resisted by health care providers. 

 
Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

318 Hyndburn Health Profile 2015 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to make the Committee aware of the 
latest Health Profile report for Hyndburn.   
 
The Chair reported that the health profile for Hyndburn was received annually and profiles 
were created from data collected over a period of time.  She explained that there were 32 
health indicators and only 3 indicators showed Hyndburn as significantly better than the 
national average.  She reported on the work that had been done to improve health 
indicators and referred to issues that would be focussed on during 2016.      
 
Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

319 Lancashire County Council Health Scrutiny Update 
 
The Chair expressed concern that Hyndburn were lacking representation at the joint health 
Lancashire meetings.  She requested that the Corporate Performance Manager added her 
to the email list for the East Lancashire Locality meetings and included her on the 
circulation list for copies of the minutes of this meeting.   
 
Resolved - That the Corporate Performance Manager adds the 

Chair of Community and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to the email list for attendance at 
the East Lancashire Locality meetings and for copies of 
the minutes of this meeting. 

 
320 Responses of Council to reports of Overview and Scrutiny 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to update the Committee on 
responses of Cabinet and Council to reports submitted by Scrutiny.  He reported that the 
recommendation to extend membership of co-optees to Aldermen had been agreed by 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
155 

Cabinet.  He indicated that discussions had been held around deciding relevant criteria for 
members acting as co-optees and the Chair requested that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer examined the criteria used by other local authorities and reported back to the 
Committee. 
 
Resolved - That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer examines the 

criteria used by other local authorities when selecting 
co-optees for the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.   

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 6



Page 1 of 3 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 22 January 2016 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Munsif Dad - Health and Communities 

REPORT AUTHOR: Principal Partnerships Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Community Safety Partnership Plan 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report provides Overview and Scrutiny members information on Hyndburn 

Community Safety Partnership’s current priorities. 
 

1.2.1 It also presents information on the key actions that will help to tackle the identified 
community safety priorities. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members are invited to comment on actions 

contained in the Partnership Plan prior to them being verified by the Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) Steering Group. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The priorities for 2015/16 are: 

 Domestic Violence and Violent Crime  

 Substance Misuse – Alcohol and Drugs  

 Youth Related Issues and Threats   

 Acquisitive Crime  

 Road Safety  

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



Page 2 of 3 

Steering Group members again wanted this year’s Partnership Plan to be focused and 
concentrate on partnership specific activity and this is reflected in Appendix 1 and shows 
what actions the CSP is undertaking in 2015/16 to address our priorities.  This plan is 
revised on an annual basis to ensure it continues to reflect the right priority areas. 

 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Circulated to members of Hyndburn Community Safety Partnership 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Legal duty to report to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not Applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Copies of documents included in this list must be open to inspection and, in the case of 
 reports to Cabinet, must be published on the website.  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 

Page 8

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 
DRAFT Hyndburn Community Safety Partnership’s Plan 2015-16 

This plan reflects partnership specific activity and shows what actions the CSP is undertaking in 2015/16 to address our priorities. 

 
Domestic Violence & Violent Crime 

Nightsafe Zone - will provide a safe space that allows 
individuals an opportunity to rest and recuperate for those 
experiencing difficulties on a night out.  In turn it is hoped 
this will help reduce incidents of alcohol related violent 
crime. 

Claire’s Law Pilot Project - Clare’s law is a new 
development within the domestic violence sector.  The 
project will provide an overview of the new process and will 
support and strengthen the work around domestic abuse in 
the Borough. 

 

Youth Related Issues and Threats 

Friday Night Football – Late night leagues is a programme 
delivered in partnership between Hyndburn Leisure and 
Accrington Stanley Community Trust and will provide positive 
activities for young people on a Friday night. 

Voice of Democracy – Kicking Alcohol – Young people along 
with elected members will explore current issues in relation to 
alcohol.  Young people will then develop an alcohol awareness 
campaign where the winners will see their project produced and 
used across the borough. 

 

Substance Misuse – Alcohol and Drugs 

Community Alcohol Network - is the team that runs several 
projects that aims to reduce young people’s access to alcohol, 
binge and risky drinking and alcohol-related anti-social 
behaviour.  Operations consists of; enforcement activities - 
targeting underage alcohol sales; effective education 
interventions with off-licenses and patrols by the Special 
Constabulary over weekend evenings to raise awareness of 
alcohol related health and social issues amongst young people, 
parents and the wider community and refer them to appropriate 
support services. 

CANSafe Operations are run by the CAN team.  It focuses on 
safeguarding young people on the streets or in public areas who 
may be classed as vulnerable or at risk of significant harm.   

 
Acquisitive Crime 

Intelligence Based Targeting – Partners will co-ordinate 
activities in identified areas to reduce the risk of repeat 
burglaries and keep our communities safe. 

Protecting Vulnerable People – this project will carry out crime 
prevention checks and target-harden properties, complementing 
intelligence based targeting. 

 
Road Safety 

Pennine Lancashire Casualty Reduction Workshop – 
partners will map existing provision, identify gaps and formulate 
an action plan. 
 
Education Programme – partner commitment to road safety 
education engagement activities with our communities, for 
example, School and Community Road Watch and Wasted 
Lives. 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Community Safety Plan

